I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

The petitioner, State of Washington, the respondent below, by and 

through Erik Pedersen, Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney for Skagit 

County, petitions this Court to review the decision of the Court of Appeals in 

State v. Peeler, COA no. 68368-9-I filed February 24, 2014. 

II. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

The Court of Appeals filed an opinion reversing the defendant's 

conviction and ordering that the trial court dismiss the case with prejudice 

pursuant a finding of a violation of RCW 9.98.020. This opinion is a 

decision terminating review permitting review under RAP 13.3(a)(1). A 

copy of the decision is attached hereto as appendix A. 

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Is the interpretation of the intrastate detainer act to a defendant 

who has pending charges in multiple counties an issue of 

substantial public interest that should be determined by the 

Supreme Court? 

2. Is the language ofRCW 9.98.010 ambiguous where there is no 

definition providing when a defendant is under a '"term of 
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imprisonment" and no prov1Slons address a defendant 

requesting multiple trials in multiple jurisdictions? 

3. Where a defendant was no longer in the Department of 

Corrections at the time his demand for disposition on an 

untried indictment under RCW 9.98.010 was the notice 

effective? 

4. Where a defendant was no longer in the custody of the 

Department of Corrections, was the defendant's notice and the 

certificate of inmate status indicating the defendant was still in 

the Department of Corrections proper? 

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

1. Court of Appeals Decision 

The Court of Appeals reversed Ryan Peeler's conviction for Assault 

in the Second Degree despite Peeler no longer being in the custody of the 

Department of Corrections when his demand for untried indictment was 

processed by the Department of Corrections and received by the prosecutor. 

State v. Peeler, COA no. 68368-9-I (slip op. at pages 1, 10). 
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The Court of Appeals decision held the demand for untried 

indictment was effective from the date of receipt by the prosecutor of 

October 27, 2011, and the statutory period expired 120 days thereafter on 

February 23, 2012. State v. Peeler, COA no. 68368-9-1 9 (slip op. at pages 

1, 3). 

The State contends since Peeler was in another county jail and not in 

the Department of Corrections when the certificate of inmate status was 

completed and demand was filed, the Court of Appeals decision is 

inconsistent with the language of the statute. 

2. Conviction. 

Ryan Peeler was convicted of Assault in the Second Degree with an 

aggravating factor for a significant injury for striking the manager of a motel 

causing unconsciousness and significant facial fractures. CP 111, 112. 

Peeler was sentenced to an exceptional sentence of 100 months and his 

sentence was ordered to run concurrent to his convictions in other counties. 

CP 270-2, 9/28112 RP 37, 50-2, 59. 

3. Proceedings bringing the defendant to trial. 

On January 28, 2011, Ryan Peeler was charged with Assault in the 

Second Degree in Skagit County. CP 1. Peeler had multiple cases pending 
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m Snohomish, King and Skagit Counties. CP 5. Peeler was in the 

Snohomish County Jail when the case was filed. CP 5, CP 284. 

On September 12, 2011, Peeler was sentenced on the Snohomish 

County matters. CP 84. The Certificate of Inmate Status of Octobe r24, 

2011, shows that Peeler had 246 days credit on the Snohomish County case 

showing he had been in custody for that period of time. 

On September 28, 2011, King County obtained a transport order to 

bring Peeler to King county. CP 84. 

On October 7, 2011, Peeler dated a Notice of Place of Imprisonment 

and Request for Untried Indictment claiming he was at that point a prisoner 

in the Washington State Corrections Center in Shelton. CP 84, 283. That 

notice signed by Peeler that day indicated "A Certificate of Inmate Status 

completed by the Washington State Corrections Center Records staff is 

attached." Peeler signed the document October 7, 2011. CP 283. However, 

the attached Certificate of Inmate Status from the Department of Corrections 

was dated October 24, 2011. CP 284. 

On October 18, 2011, Peeler was transported from the Department of 

Corrections to King County. CP 84 (Finding 4). 

On October 26, 2011, Peeler filed a Notice of Place of Imprisonment 

and Request for Final Disposition of Untried Indictment, Information or 
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Complaint (RCW 9.98.010) in Skagit County. CP 283-4. The notice from 

the Department of Corrections indicated that Peeler was being held on a 

Snohomish County case and would be eligible for parole on July 18, 2012. 

But as noted previously, Peeler was no longer in the Department of 

Corrections since he had been transported to King County to deal with 

another pretrial case in that jurisdiction. CP 84 (Finding 4 ), 85 (Finding 8). 

On October 27, 2011, the State prepared an order for transport for a 

hearing in Superior Court for November 17, 2011. CP 85 (Finding 7), 285. 

Peeler was not in the Department of Corrections. CP 85 (Finding 8). 

On December 23, 2011, Peeler pled guilty to the King County 

charges. CP 85 (Finding 9). Peeler was returned to prison. 

On January 30, 2012, Peeler filed a Notice of Place of Imprisonment 

and Request for Final Disposition of Untried Indictment, Information or 

Complaint (RCW 9.98.010) in Skagit County. CP 286-7. That notice 

indicated that he was then being held on both a Snohomish County case and 

three King County cases and would be eligible for parole on March 6, 2013. 

CP287. 

On February 2, 2012, the State prepared an order for transport for a 

hearing in Superior Court for February 16,2012. CP 288,289. 
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On February 16, 2012, Peeler was arraigned and a trial date was set. 

CP 290. Based upon arraignment, time for trial was calculated as April 16, 

2012. CP 290. Thereafter, the case and trial date was continued at defense 

request. CP 86 (Finding 16). 

On August 17, 2012, Peeler filed a motion to dismiss pursuant to 

RCW 9.98.010 and RCW 9.98.020, alleging he was not brought to trial 

within 120 days of his request for disposition of the untried indictment. CP 

13-22. 

On August 22, 2012, the trial court heard a motion to dismiss based 

upon a violation ofRCW 9.98.0110 for failing to bring Peeler to trial within 

120 days after a demand for extradition was filed. 8/22/12 RP 231
• 

The trial court concluded that for RCW 9.98.010 to apply a 

defendant must be imprisoned and available for transport and that Peeler was 

not available for transport in October of 2011. 8/22/12 RP 32-3, CP 86 

(Conclusion 1 ). The trial court found Peeler available for transport in 

January of2012, and that he was arraigned timely on February 16,2012. CP 

86. 

1 The State will refer to the verbatim report of proceedings by using the date followed by 
"RP" and the page number. 
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V. REASONS WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED AND 
ARGUMENT 

1. The interpretation of the demand for untried indictments is 
an issue of substantial public interest of law that should be 
determined by the Supreme Court. 

This Court has recognized that the constitutional right to speedy trial 

and time for trial issues are significant issues of law that should be addressed 

by the Supreme Court. See Supreme Court Order Creating the Time for 

Trial Task Force dated March 11, 2002 (located at the court's website at: 

http:/ /www.courts. wa.gov/prograrns _ orgslpos _ tft/index.cfm?fa=pos _ tft.repo 

rtDisplay&fileName=appendixA). 

This case presents an interpretation of the language of RCW 

9.98.010 first enacted in 1959. Laws of Washington, 1959 c 56 § 1. The 

only two subsequent changes to the statute have been technical corrections 

dealing with registered versus certified mail and gender neutrality changes. 

Laws ofWashington, 2011 c 336 § 345, Laws ofWashington, 1999 c 143, § 

33. 

This Court has previously examined RCW 9.98.010 and interpreted 

the language of that statute in State v. Morris, 126 Wn.2d 306, 892 P.2d 734 

(1995) (reviewing a Court of Appeals decision regarding the effective date 

for the notice sent by the defendant to the prosecutor). 
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2. RCW 9.98.010 has a physical location requirement based 
upon whether a defendant is under a "term of 
imprisonment" in the facility from which the demand is 
made. 

The Court of Appeals decision herein is predicated upon the 

determination that the defendant was serving a ''term of imprisonment" 

while he was being held in custody in another county. 

RCW 9.98.010(1) unambiguously applies to a prisoner who 
is serving a sentence in a state prison and during this 
imprisonment, has an untried indictment, information, or 
complaint pending in Washington. The statute imposes no 
physical location requirement. If the legislature had intended 
this result, it could have easily drafted the statute to include 
it. 

State v. Peeler, COA no. 68368-9-I (slip op. at pages 6-7). 

The pertinent portion of the statute read as follows: 

RCW 9.98.010. Disposition of untried indictment, 
information, complaint--Procedure--Escape, effect 
(1) Whenever a person has entered upon a term of 
imprisonment in a penal or correctional institution of this 
state, and whenever during the continuance of the term of 
imprisonment there is pending in this state any untried 
indictment, information, or complaint against the prisoner, he 
or she shall be brought to trial within one hundred 
twenty days after he or she shall have caused to be 
delivered to the prosecuting attorney and the superior 
court of the county in which the indictment, information, 
or complaint is pending written notice of the place of his 
or her imprisonment and his or her request for a fmal 
disposition to be made of the indictment, information, or 
complaint: PROVIDED, That for good cause shown in open 
court, the prisoner or his or her counsel shall have the right to 
be present, the court having jurisdiction of the matter may 

8 



grant any necessary or reasonable continuance. The request 
of the prisoner shall be accompanied by a certificate of 
the superintendent having custody of the prisoner, stating 
the term of commitment under which the prisoner is being 
held, the time already served, the time remaining to be served 
on the sentence, the amount of good time earned, the time of 
parole eligibility of the prisoner, and any decisions of the 
indeterminate sentence review board relating to the prisoner. 
(2) The written notice and request for fmal disposition 
referred to in subsection (1) of this section shall be given 
or sent by the prisoner to the superintendent having 
custody of him or her, who shall promptly forward it 
together with the certificate to the appropriate 
prosecuting attorney and superior court by certified mail, 
return receipt requested. 

RCW 9.98.010 (emphasis added, sections (3) and (4) omitted). 

Contrary to the Court of Appeals decision, the statute provides 

three limitations on the demand based upon the physical location of the 

defendant. First, "written notice of the place of his or her imprisonment" 

is required to be given in the notice sent to the prosecutor and filed with 

the Court. RCW 9.98.010(1). Second, the written notice must be given 

''to the superintendent having custody of him or her." And third, the 

"written notice and request for final disposition referred to in subsection 

(1) of this section shall be given or sent by the prisoner to the 

superintendent having custody of him or her." RCW 9.98.010(2). 

Although Peeler was in the custody of the Department of 

Corrections when he dated his initial notice on October 7, 2011, by 
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October 18, 2011, he had been transported from the Department of 

Corrections. So by the time the Department of Corrections completed his 

Certificate of Inmate Status on October 24, 2011, Peeler was no longer in 

the location where he provided the "written notice of the place of his or 

her imprisonment" and was no longer available to have a proper request 

from "the superintendent having custody of him or her." 

Contrary to the Court of Appeals decision, RCW 9.98.010 provides 

limitations on the locations from which a defendant can make a demand. 

3. The defendant was no longer in the custody of the 
Superintendent of the Department of Corrections but in 
pretrial custody of another county making the notice 
ineffective. 

Peeler contended in the Court of Appeals that "he was temporarily 

held in a county jail while serving his DOC sentence." Appellant's Opening 

Brief at page 21. Thus, the State contends that Peeler conceded he was in 

fact in another county on pretrial status on another case and not in the 

custody of the superintendent of the Department of Corrections when his 

demand was received by Skagit County. 

The 120 period set by the statute has been held to apply from the 

time the prosecuting attorney received notice of the request. 

Accordingly, we hold that actual receipt by the prosecuting 
attorney and superior court of the county in which the 
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indictment, information, or complaint is pending commences 
the 120-day period. 

State v. Morris, 126 Wn.2d 306, 313, 892 P.2d 734 (1995 

Thus, at the point that the State received the demand, Peeler was no 

longer under "a term of imprisonment in a penal or correctional institution." 

He was on pretrial status in King County on their charges. CP 85. His 

notice was also incorrect since his "notice of the place of his or her 

imprisonment" was no longer in the custody of the Department of 

Corrections, but instead was in King County. Peeler did not submit a request 

for untried indictment while in King County. Had he attempted to do so, he 

would have been ineligible since he was not under a "term of imprisonment" 

in that county. 

Compliance with the requirements of RCW 9.98.010 is required in 

order to claim the benefit of the 120-day time period. State v. Young, 16 

Wn. App. 838, 840, 561 P.2d 204 (1977), citing State v. Rising, 15 Wn. 

App. 693, 552 P.2d 1056 (1976). 

Applying the plain language of RCW 9.98.010, Peeler's notice 

received October 26, 2011, was incorrect and as such was ineffective. He 

was neither serving a term of confmement nor in the facility from which he 

made the demand. 
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4. The Department of Corrections notice was inappropriate 
since the defendant was no longer in the custody of the 
superintendent at the time the Certificate of Inmate Status 
was completed. 

The Court of Appeals also erroneously concluded that Peeler's 

demand was accurate. 

Peeler's first disposition request stated, "I am a prisoner at 
the Washington Corrections Center, P.O. Box 900, Shelton, 
W A." This statement was accurate when made. 

State v. Peeler, COA no. 68368-9-I (slip op. at pages 7-8). The State 

contends this statement is erroneous given the full language of Peeler's 

demand. See CP 283-4. Appendix B. That demand read as follows: 

I am a prisoner confined at the Washington State Corrections 
Center, P.O. Box 900, Shelton, W A. I hereby request a final 
disposition of the following untried indictment(s) information 
or complaint pursuant to RCW 9.98.010 

Cause Nunmber Offense 

111000906 ASSAULT2 

A Certificate of Inmate Status completed by the Washington 
Corrections Center Record Staff is attached. 

DATE: 10-7-11 Signature: /sf Ryan Peeler 

CP 283. Although dated October 7, 2011, there was no Certificate oflnmate 

Status attached since it was not completed until October 24, 2011. The 

demand has to include the required certificate of inmate status from the 

Department of Corrections and was thus incomplete when Peeler made the 

12 



demand and would not have been effective until that demand was attached. 

RCW 9.98.010(1). 

The trial court determined that Peeler was transported to King 

County on October 18, 2011. CP 84. That was not contested. Thus, the 

Department of Corrections could not have properly issued Peeler's 

Certificate of Inmate Status on October 24, 2011, because Peeler was no 

longer in the Department of Corrections but was in King County. Thus, the 

Certificate of Inmate Status was in error. 

After October 18, 2011, Peeler was not servmg a term of 

imprisonment and RCW 9.98.010 was unavailable to him until his return to 

the Department of Corrections. 

VI. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons set forth in this petition, this Court should accept 

review and reverse the Court of Appeals opinion with direction for the Court 

of Appeals to address Peeler's other unresolved claims. RAP 13.6.