A. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT 

Ryan Peeler, respondent here and appellant below, asks this 

Court to deny the request to review the Court of Appeals decision 

terminating review pursuant to RAP 13.3(a)(l) and RAP 13.4(b). 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

The unpublished Court of Appeals opinion was issued on 

February 24, 2014, and neither party filed a motion for reconsideration. 

A copy is attached to the State's petition for review. 

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Based on the plain language ofthe intrastate detainer act, 

undisputed facts, and settled law, the Court of Appeals held that the 

State did not adequately comply with Mr. Peeler's written request that 

he be bought to trial on a charged offense. The Court of Appeals 

opinion is not published. The prosecution asks this Court to take review 

by asserting there is substantial public interest in review. Where the 

Court of Appeals applied clear statutory language to undisputed facts in 

an unpublished decision, has the State shown substantial public interest 

merits review? 

2. Throughout its response brief and its petition for review, the 

State describes the "plain language" of the statute as governing this 
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case. Incongruously, it identifies an issue presented for review as 

whether the statutory language that a defendant is "under a term of 

imprisonment" is ambiguous. Having apparently conceded that the 

statutory language is clear, is there reason to grant review based on the 

unexplained assertion that the language is ambiguous? 

3. It is undisputed that Mr. Peeler was serving a term of 

imprisonment when he filed the required formal request that the State 

commence prosecution of an untried charged from Skagit County. The 

State asserts that Mr. Peeler was no longer in the "custody" of the 

Department of Corrections when the county received his request 

because the state had temporarily transferred him to a different facility. 

Despite this temporary transfer, Mr. Peeler returned to his initial state 

prison facility, and was transported to Skagit County, all before the 

expiration of the 120-day time for trial allowed by RCW 9.98.010. 

Consequently, the prosecution could have complied with the statute if it 

had set a trial date or persuaded the trial court there was good cause for 

a continuance before the 120-day period expired. Did the Court of 

Appeals correctly apply established legal principles to rule that the 

State's unexcused failure to set a trial date within 120 days of receiving 
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a valid request to be brought to trial violates RCW 9.98.010 and RCW 

9.98.0207 

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The Skagit County prosecutor charged Ryan Peeler with second 

degree assault on January 28, 2011, based on an incident that occurred 

13 days earlier. CP 4, 23. When it filed the charge, it knew Mr. Peeler 

was in the custody of its neighboring county, Snohomish, awaiting trial 

on other charges. CP 4, 23. It made no effort to bring Mr. Peeler to 

Skagit County while he was held in Snohomish County. CP 23. There is 

no evidence that the State even informed Mr. Peeler of the Skagit 

County charge against him. 

Mr. Peeler remained at the Snohomish County jail for eight 

more months, until he was sent to the Department of Corrections 

(DOC) to serve a prison sentence on September 20, 2011. CP 33, 36. 

On October 7, 20 11, Mr. Peeler filed a formal request for the 

State to prosecute the untried information in the Skagit County case. CP 

18. DOC sent Mr. Peeler's written request and the necessary 

certification of inmate status to Skagit County, which it received on 

October 26, 2011. CP 18. In response, the prosecution asked DOC to 

transport Mr. Peeler to Skagit County, but in the interim, DOC had 
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transferred Mr. Peeler to King County on another matter. CP 39, 44. 

DOC informed the Skagit County prosecution of this transfer and the 

prosecution took no further steps to prosecute Mr. Peeler until he filed a 

second request with Skagit County on January 20,2012. CP 21,44.1 

After this second request, he was brought to Skagit County and 

arraigned. CP 23-24. 

Mr. Peeler moved to dismiss the untried Skagit County charge 

due to the violation of the time for trial requirements set forth in RCW 

9.98.010 and RCW 9.98.020. CP 13. The trial court ruled that even 

though the State received notice that Mr. Peeler was requesting 

prosecution on October 26, 2011, it was not required to bring him to 

trial because by the time Skagit County requested his transfer, he had 

been taken from his DOC facility to King County. 8/22/12RP 32-33. 

The court's conclusion was premised on its belief that RCW 9.98.010 

only applied when an accused person was physically held in a state 

prison, and therefore any time Mr. Peeler was in a jail, as opposed to a 

state prison, the State had no obligation to act on an inmate's request to 

be tried. 8/22/12RP 32. 

1 Mr. Peeler returned to DOC from King County on December 30,2011. 
CP 33. 
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The Court of Appeals ruled that the State's failure to bring Mr. 

Peeler to trial within 120 days of receiving his request to be tried 

violated the plain terms ofRCW 9.98.010. Slip op. at 7-10. It reversed 

the ruling of the trial court based on the plain language of the statute 

governing intrastate detainers, RCW 9.98.010. !d. The State filed a 

petition for review. 

E. ARGUMENT. 

The unpublished Court of Appeals opinion relies on 
this Court's precedent to construe a statute and there 
is no conflict or constitutional infirmity requiring 
review 

1. The Court of Appeals opinion is based on undisputed facts 
and the plain language of the governing statute as 
consistently interpreted and applied by other courts. 

The Court of Appeals relied on this Court's precedent and 

settled principles of statutory construction to apply RCW 9.98.010 to 

the case at bar. Its analysis and the holding of the unpublished decision 

do not merit review under RAP 13 .4(b ). 

RCW 9.98.010 states that when a person has "entered upon a 

term of imprisonment in a penal or correctional institution of this state," 

and he faces untried charges in this state, he may request that the State 

bring him to trial. RCW 9.98.010 explains the procedure for an accused 
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person to request that the State commence an untried prosecution. 

Under RCW 9.98.010, when the State does not bring the person to trial 

in 120 days of receiving the inmate's request, the court loses 

jurisdiction and must dismiss the case with prejudice. RCW 9.98.020; 

State v. Morris, 126 Wn.2d 306,310-11,892 P.2d 734 (1995). 

Under established principles of statutory construction, courts 

interpreting a penal statute must "give it a literal and strict 

interpretation." State v. Delgado, 148 Wn.2d 723, 727, 63 PJd 792, 

795 (2003). A penal statute must be construed in the defendant's favor 

when ambiguous. State v. Jacobs, 154 Wn.2d 596, 601, 115 P .3d 281 

(2005). The court may not "add words or clauses to an unambiguous 

statute when the legislature has chosen not to include that language." 

Slip op. at 5 (quoting Delgado, 148 Wn.2d at 727). 

As the Court of Appeals explained, the language of RCW 

9.98.010 is plain and unambiguous. Slip op. at 6-8. It applies to any 

person who has "entered upon a term of imprisonment in a penal or 

correctional institution of this state." RCW 9.98.010(1). Mr. Peeler had 

been sentenced to a term of imprisonment and was serving this term 

when he requested to be brought to trial on the untried Skagit County 
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charge. CP 36. He had "entered upon a term of imprisonment," as 

required to trigger RCW 9.98.010. 

RCW 9.98.010(1) further applies "whenever during the 

continuance of the term of imprisonment" there is an untried charge 

pending in this state. The term "whenever" is expansive and this phrase 

indicates that any time, "during the continuance of the term of 

imprisonment," a prisoner may validly request trial on an uncharged 

crime. See State v. Sutherby, 165 Wn.2d 870, 880, 204 P.3d 916 (2009) 

(expansive dictionary definition of word "any" shows intent for broad 

application of phrase). Mr. Peeler's term of imprisonment was on-going 

when he made his request to bring an untried charge to trial, which is 

all the statute requires. 

As the Court of Appeals stated, the facts are undisputed. Slip op. 

at 2. While serving a state prison sentence, Mr. Peeler filed the 

necessary formal request for the State to prosecute the untried 

information that had been filed in Skagit County. CP 18. Skagit County 

received the required DOC certification on October 26, 2011. CP 18. 

When the Skagit County prosecutor asked DOC to transport Mr. 

Peeler to Skagit County, it learned that DOC had recently received an 

order to transport Mr. Peeler to King County on another matter. CP 39, 
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44. DOC informed the Skagit County prosecution that it had moved Mr. 

Peeler to the King County jail. CP 23. The prosecution took no further 

steps to prosecute Mr. Peeler until he filed a second written request to 

Skagit County on January 20,2012. CP 21, 44. After the second 

request, Mr. Peeler was brought to Skagit County and arraigned on this 

charge. CP 23-24. The State did not set a trial before February 23, 

2012, when the 120-day period permitted under RCW 9.98.010 expired. 

CP 14; RCW 9.98.020. 

The State tries to avoid the application ofRCW9.98.010 by 

claiming that an inmate's request to be tried is nullified if he is moved 

from one state prison to a different facility within the state before the 

prosecution tries to transport him. The Court of Appeals refused to read 

this requirement into the statute. Slip op. at 6-7. The "statute's plain 

text" does not require that the person "must be available for transport 

on the date the prosecuting attorney and superior court receive" a 

disposition request. Slip op. at 8. 

Had the legislature intended to limit an inmate's ability to be 

brought to court for an untried charge based on his or her location, it 

would have said so. Slip op. at 7. Instead, the legislature used broad 
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language that triggers the statute's application whenever a person is 

serving a term of imprisonment within this state. RCW 9.98.010(1). 

The statute requires only that a person is serving a "term of 

imprisonment in a penal or correctional institution of this state." This 

language "is not qualified by specific location." State v. Slattum, 173 

Wn.App. 640, 655, 295 P.3d 788 (2013), rev. denied, 178 Wn.2d 1010 

(2013). The statute was written to parallel the interstate detainer statute, 

RCW ch. 9.100, which sets forth the obligations of this state to bring a 

person to trial when being held in another state. Morris, 126 Wn.2d at 

310; see RCW 9.100.010 (Article III). The requirement that a person is 

held in a facility "of this state" in RCW 9.98.010(1) was intended to 

differentiate the intrastate statutory scheme from the interstate 

requirements ofRCW ch. 9.100. If the Legislature had intended that the 

statute only applied when a person is confined in a certain "state 

correctional facility" it would have said so. Slattum, 173 Wn.App. at 

655. Rather than limiting its application to a person confined inside a 

particular facility, RCW 9.98.010 applies to a person in a "penal or 

correctional" institution within the state, signaling legislative intent to 

include "penal" facilities without limitation to one location. 
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Furthermore, the State's effort to inject a single-location 

requirement is contrary to the statute's purpose. Inmates have no 

control over the facilities in which they serve their sentences and they 

may be moved without advanced notice. On the other hand, both DOC 

and the prosecution have a ready ability to determine the location of a 

person serving a prison sentence within this state. Mr. Peeler was 

moved from one DOC facility to the King County jail based on a 

request outside his control and likely without his knowledge. CP 39. 

The purpose of the intrastate detainer act is to provide a mechanism for 

incarcerated people to settle unresolved charges, which helps the 

inmate's eligibility for institutional programs and fewer security 

restrictions while serving a sentence and helps the prosecution resolve 

unsettled charges. State v. Bishop, 134 Wn.App. 133, 139, 139 P.3d 363 

(2006), rev. denied, 159 Wn.2d 1023 (2007). 

As written, RCW 9.98.010 does not limit the accused person's 

location other than requiring that the person has entered upon a term of 

imprisonment in a penal or correctional institution of this state. Mr. 

Peeler was within this state, serving a state sentence, and his 

whereabouts were always known or readily discoverable by the 
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prosecution. The Court of Appeals correctly applied the statute to the 

case at bar and there is no broader public interest in granting review. 

2. Even the State concedes the statutory language is not 
ambiguous. 

The State lists one issue presented as whether the language of 

RCW 9.98.010 is ambiguous in its description of when is person is 

serving a term of imprisonment. But in its argument, it refers to the 

"plain language" of the statute. It made the same "plain language" 

argument in the Court of Appeals and never asserted that there was 

ambiguity in the statute. And it never mentions governing rule of lenity, 

so that if the statute is ambiguous, it would be construed in the light 

most favorable to the accused. 

The Court of Appeals relied on and agreed with the State's 

insistence that the statute was unambiguous. Slip op. at 6-7. The Court 

of Appeals rejected the State's analysis, explaining that "The State 

argues RCW 9.98.010's 'plain language' applies. We agree. The 

problem with the State's 'plain language' argument is it reads into the 

statute language that appears nowhere in the statute." Slip op. at 6 

(internal citation omitted). 
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A statute is ambiguous when it is "susceptible to two or more 

reasonable interpretations" but not "merely because different 

interpretations are conceivable." Slip op. at 5 (quoting State v. Gray, 

174 Wn.2d 920, 927, 280 P.3d 1110 (2012)). The State does not 

identify differing reasonable interpretations of the statute and the Court 

of Appeals saw no ambiguity. This Court should deny the State's 

petition for review. 

3. As the Court of Appeals correctly held, the State had ample 
opportunity to seek a continuance under RCW 9.98.010 and 
its failure to do so does not demonstrate a policy reason to 
redefine the essential terms of the intrastate detainer statute 

The State's petition for review ignores a central premise of the 

Court of Appeals holding. Even if Mr. Peeler's temporary 

transportation from state prison to county jail made it difficult for the 

State to secure Mr. Peeler's presence in Skagit County, the statute 

provides an avenue for relief that the State ignored. Slip op. at 9-10. 

Mr. Peeler's second request to be brought to trial resulted in his 

presence in Skagit County before the expiration of the 120-day time for 

trial under RCW 9.98.010. Slip op. at 2, 9. Yet the State neither sought 

a continuance within the 120-day period nor set the case for trial within 

the 120-day period. Slip op. at 9. Had it done so, it would have 
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complied with the requirements ofRCW 9.98.010 and would not have 

lost jurisdiction under RCW 9.98.020. !d. 

This Court does not need to consider any of the excuses raised 

by the prosecution for its failure to bring Mr. Peeler to trial after his 

request to be prosecuted. As the Court of Appeals held, "Our record 

fails to show why the State took no further action," after it received Mr. 

Peeler's first request and learned he had been taken to King County jail 

for resolution of another charge. Slip op. at 9. The State could have 

complied with the statute had it tried to do so, and its lack of 

compliance caused the court to lose jurisdiction under RCW 9.98.020. 

The Court of Appeals decision rests on firm reasoning and 

settled law. Finally, there are remaining unresolved issues that also 

require reversal of Mr. Peeler's conviction that the Court of Appeals 

did not reach. Slip op. at 10 n.8. These issues remain part of the appeal 

and would require remand for further consideration. 
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F. CONCLUSION. 

Respondent Ryan Peeler respectfully requests that the Court 

deny the petition for review.